
AGENDA 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

October 16, 2018, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

to be held at the following location: 
Port of Allyn 

18560 East SR 3 
Allyn 

OPENING PROTOCOL 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 03: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the September 18, 2018
MTA regular Board meeting 

2. Pg. 07: Financial Reports:  September 2018
3. Pg. 15: Check Approval: September 14, 2018 – October 10, 2018

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. [None]

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg.    23:  Electronic Board Packets – ACTIONABLE 
2. Pg.    29:  Proposed Revised Non-Represented Compensation Plan –

 Resolution No. 2018-13 – ACTIONABLE 
3. Pg.    39:  Surplus Vehicle – Resolution No. 2018-14 – ACTIONABLE 
4. Pg.    43:  Intergovernmental Disposition – ACTIONABLE 
5. Pg.    47:  First View of 2019 Budget (Operating Only) – DISCUSSION  

INFORMATIONAL UPDATES 
1. Pg.   55: Park and Ride Update
2. Pg.   57: Management Reports

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

ADJOURNMENT 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 1



 

UPCOMING MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

November 20, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Public Hearing on Proposed 2019 Budget 

Tuesday, October 30, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any 
type of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 
in advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
September 18, 2018 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Kevin Shutty, Chair; Wes Martin, Vice Chair; 
John Campbell, Terri Drexler, Kevin Dorcy, Randy Neatherlin, Deb Petersen, Don Pogreba and 
Sandy Tarzwell. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [All present.] 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Bobby Joe Murray, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Danette Brannin, General Manager; 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager; 
Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager; Kathy Geist, Outreach-Transit Planner; 
and Cristina Barone of Nelson/Nygaard.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the September 18, 2018 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular 
board meeting be accepted and approved. Campbell/Martin. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – [None.] 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of July 17, 
2018 and the MTA Board special meeting of August 28, 2018. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for the 

period of July and August, 2018 as presented. 
 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of July 12, 

2018 through September 13, 2018 financial obligations on checks #31579 through 
#31847, as presented for a total of $1,239,341.83. 

 
Campbell/Tarzwell. Motion carried. 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 3



2 

 

               

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

1. Nelson/Nygaard Presentation – Cristina Barone discussed the proposed services 
scenarios based on responses from riders and general public in connection with the 
surveys, as well as the upcoming public engagement events. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Amendment to 2018 LMTAAA Contract – LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 
Manager, described to the Board that, through the Amendment, MTA will receive 
additional funding from LMTAAA for the 2018 Volunteer Driver program. Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the Chair to execute the Lewis-Mason-Thurston 
Area Agency on Aging Contract No. 18-1120-0041-06(1) for the provision of volunteer 
transportation services. Drexler/Pogreba. Motion carried. 

 
2. Maintenance Committee – Danette Brannin, General Manager, described the history 

and development of the Maintenance Committee; the potential construction cost 
concerns voiced by the Maintenance Committee and upcoming request for bids. 
Following a brief discussion in connection with the upcoming bid process relating to the 
building construction at the Belfair Park and Ride, it was moved that the main request 
for bid shall be for the original square footage of the building with a request that an 
alternative bid be requested for the larger building as an alternate. 
Neatherlin/Campbell. Motion carried. 

 
3. Memorandum of Understanding with Mason County Community Services-

Public Health – Ms. Brannin indicated that it was requested by the Mason County 
Community Services-Public Health that the Memorandum of Understanding be entered 
into to identify how MTA will have a presence at the quarterly stakeholder meetings and 
explore community partnerships to fill gaps in the Mason County Opioid Response Plan. 
Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2018-12 and the 
Memorandum of Understanding with Mason County Community Services-Public Health in 
connection with its Mason County Opioid Response Plan. Neatherlin/Campbell. 
Motion carried. 

 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – Ms. Brannin briefly spoke to the Board with regard to the park 
and rides as well as explained that the operations statistics were being provided to the Board in a 
new format that may assist in identifying trends and other information relating to tracking 
ridership numbers.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – [None.] 
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS – 
Board member Neatherlin expressed his appreciation of Kathy Geist’s participation at the two 
Opiate Stakeholders task force meetings, which was also echoed by the Board Chair and 
Board member Campbell. 
  
EXECUTIVE SESSION – The Board Chair announced that the meeting was in Executive 
Session at 5:21 p.m. to review the performance of a public employee; that the session is closed 
to the public and action may follow the executive session. The Board Chair then excused all 
participants in the meeting except Board members. The Board Chair stated that it may end at 
5:41 p.m. 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 4



3 

 

               

At 5:41 p.m., Board member Dorcy left the Board meeting and the Board Chair indicated that 
the session may end in an additional 10 minutes. 
 
At 5:47 p.m., MTA legal counsel left the executive session. 
 
At 5:51 p.m., Ms. Brannin was requested to be present in the Executive Session and the Board 
Chair stated that executive session may end at 6:01 p.m.   
 
RECONVENED REGULAR SESSION – The Board Chair announced that the meeting was in 
regular session at 6:01 p.m. with the following action being taken: 
 
It was moved by Board member Neatherlin that in recognition of Ms. Brannin’s fantastic review 
and all the improvements that she has made to Mason Transit since becoming General Manager, 
to show the Board’s appreciation for all that she has done, they were increasing her income to a 
level she deserved, which is 10%, so that her annual income would now be $100,740. 
Neatherlin/Campbell. Motion carried. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 6:02 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Service Analysis Open House 

North Mason Timberland Library 
23081 NE State Route 3 

Belfair 
Monday, September 24 

5:30 pm – 7:30 pm 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Service Analysis Open House 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
Tuesday, September 25 

5:30 pm – 7:30 pm 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

October 16, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Port of Allyn 

18560 East SR 3 
Allyn 

 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 5



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 6



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 7



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 8



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 9



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 10



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 11



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 12



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 13



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 14



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 15



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 16



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 17



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 18



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 19



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 20



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 21



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 22



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Electronic Board Packets 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
As MTA continues to seek cost-cutting, efficient and green solutions to daily tasks, this 
proposal is to change the format of final Board packets provided at Board meetings 
from paper format to electronic by the use of electronic tablets. 
 
We have compared costs of paper versus electronic copies and based on research have 
found that not only are electronic copies beneficial to the environment by not using 
natural resources, but also provides MTA with a cost savings as well. A memo is 
attached showing the research and cost analysis. 
 
It is proposed that MTA tablets would be used at the Board meeting only for the 
purpose of viewing the Board packet during the meeting. All of the tablets would be 
charged and the current month’s PDF copy of the Board packet would be placed on the 
tablet. At the conclusion of each meeting, all of the tablets would be returned to the 
Clerk, who would then delete the Board meeting packet off of each the following day as 
it would be a duplicate transitory document.  
 
As always, a few copies would be available for the public, but compared to the usual 20 
copies, there would only be 3 or 4. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$2,500 for tablets. Cost savings over the life of the tablets (3 years) would be 
approximately $5k. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board begin using electronic versions of its 
Board packets beginning in 2019 by having electronic devices available at all public 
meetings.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 24



Memorandum to D. Brannin 
June 11, 2018  Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Danette Brannin 

FROM: Tracy Becht  

RE: Cost Analysis of Tablets vs. Paper for Board Meetings 

DATE: June 11, 2018 

 

Purpose of Research 

As MTA continues to seek cost-cutting, efficient and green solutions to daily tasks, this memo 
and attachment are to present my research in connection with the annual cost of copying the 
final Board packets for Board meetings, with a proposal of using viewing tablets. 
 

Process of Tablet Use 
 

My vision is to use tablets that are used at the Board meeting only for the purpose of viewing 
the Board packet during the meeting.  I will have all of the tablets charged and the PDFs 
downloaded on each prior to each meeting. By placing a PDF copy of the Board packet on the 
tablet, they are at less risk of technical issues compared to being dependent on wifi, such as 
when conducting our meetings at the Port of Allyn or any other remote site. The cost of staff 
time to drag and drop a PDF document onto each tablet vs. standing at a copy machine for two 
hours is another cost savings. On a single full charge, the tablets can be viewed for several hours 
before losing the charge. At the conclusion of each meeting, I will have all of the tablets 
returned to me and delete that Board meeting packet off of each the following day as it is a 
duplicate transitory document.  
 

Benefits of Using Tablets Only at Meeting 
 

No potential Public Records Act issues or having to track down equipment. No licensing fees as 
the only program needed would be Adobe Reader, which is a free download. 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 25



Memorandum to D. Brannin 
June 11, 2018  Page 2 of 2 

 
Less expensive equipment can be used as there are no extra software or other maintenance 
needs. We do not need a great deal of storage capacity on the tablets as they will not be storing 
any documentation. 
 

Other Things to Consider 
 

Dry Run:  Since I will be continuing to use paper for the purpose of taking notes, it would make 
sense for us to purchase only one tablet and have you do a dry run to be sure that it is easy to 
work with; that Board members will be able to read items; and general overall use. 
  
Some Board members may prefer paper: I would be happy to sit down with any Board 
member and provide individual training sessions. My observation of our current Board is that 
most are comfortable with technology. 
 
Transition of Paper to Tablet:  Present information to Board for approval of change. Once we 
have all the tablets, we could spend the last portion of a meeting with both paper and tablets 
and have a tutorial session to prepare them for the next month and how to work with the tablets 
so that by the next week, they are comfortable with the equipment. 
 
Public copies: I will still need to make paper copies for the public, but in comparison to the 
usual 20 copies, I would only make 3 or 4. 
 

Conclusion 
 

I would also like to credit Josh Jacobs for his IT researching of weighing of benefits, as well as 
Haley Dorian for researching the 2017 costs associated with the copier. Each were instrumental 
in providing this information. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this proposal. 
 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 26



C
os

t A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 P
ap

er
 C

op
ie

s

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

ol
or

 p
ag

es
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

in
 2

01
7

16
,5

00
N

um
be

r 
of

 B
&

W
 p

ag
es

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
in

 2
01

7
11

,6
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ag

es
 c

op
ie

d 
in

 2
01

7 
fo

r 
Bo

ar
d 

pa
ck

et
s

28
,1

80
N

um
be

r 
of

 B
oa

rd
 p

ac
ke

t c
op

ie
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 e
ac

h 
m

on
th

20
N

um
be

r 
of

 a
ve

ra
ge

 c
op

ie
s 

sh
re

dd
ed

 a
ft

er
 m

ee
tin

g
16

To
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 A
dm

in
 c

op
ie

r 
in

 2
01

7
14

6,
00

7
Bo

ar
d 

Pa
ck

et
s 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f A
dm

in
 c

op
ie

r 
in

 2
01

7
11

%

Pr
in

tin
g 

Ch
ar

ge
s 

fo
r 

20
17

 (P
ac

ifi
c 

O
ffi

ce
 A

ut
om

at
io

n)
$1

,0
00

Pa
pe

r 
co

st
s 

fo
r 

Bo
ar

d 
pa

ck
et

 (7
 c

as
es

/$
30

 e
ac

h 
of

 8
 r

ea
m

s 
pe

r 
ca

se
)

$2
10

Le
as

e 
an

d 
To

ne
r 

fo
r 

20
17

  c
os

t $
4,

43
0.

76
  (

Bo
ar

d 
Pa

ck
et

 %
 o

f T
ot

al
)

$4
87

.0
0

St
af

f t
im

e 
to

 c
op

y 
(a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 2
.5

 h
rs

/m
on

th
)

75
0

20
17

 C
os

t o
f P

ap
er

 B
oa

rd
 P

ac
ke

ts
$2

,4
47

C
os

t A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 T
ab

le
ts

K
in

dl
e 

Fi
re

 (v
ie

w
in

g 
on

ly
) e

ac
h 

7"
$5

0
K

in
dl

e 
Fi

re
 H

D
10

 (1
0"

 s
cr

ee
n)

 (s
al

e 
pr

ic
e)

$1
20

RC
A 

G
al

ile
a 

Pr
o 

(1
1.

5"
 s

cr
ee

n)
 - 

pu
rc

ha
se

 a
t W

al
m

ar
t

$8
0

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 li

fe
 o

f t
ab

le
t -

 3
 y

ea
rs

Pr
op

os
ed

 n
um

be
r 

of
 ta

bl
et

s 
(1

0 
Bo

ar
d 

m
em

be
rs

, 4
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 1
 le

ga
l c

ou
ns

el
 a

nd
 2

 
ex

tr
as

 fo
r 

ba
ck

-u
p)

17

C
O

ST
 A

N
A

LY
SI

S 
O

F 
P

A
P

E
R

 v
s.

 T
A

B
LE

TS
 F

O
R

 F
IN

A
L 

B
O

A
R

D
 P

A
C

K
E

TS

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 27



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 28



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:    Proposed Revised Non-Represented Compensation Plan 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager  
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-09, adopted by the MTA Authority Board on April 18, 
2017, the Board approved a Compensation Philosophy and Plan for non-represented 
employees. 
 
The Compensation Philosophy & Plan is intended to provide non-represented staff with 
a guideline on how annual wage increases are to be determined. The compensation 
plan is subject to review periodically. The proposed updated plan provides the ability to 
apply a portion of compensation based on performance exceeding expectations as 
measured in the annual performance appraisal process.   
 
The Plan also addresses the General Manager’s salary determination by giving the 
Board the ability to set the salary. 
 
The Compensation Committee has met with staff in connection with the proposed 
changes. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
To be included in 2019 budget 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2018-13, to amend 
Resolution No. 2017-09 that initially adopted the Compensation Philosophy and Plan.  
 
  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 30



MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY & PLAN 2019 

Board Approved:  ____________________________ 
 
 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 
 
In support of fulfilling our mission, Mason Transit Authority shall maintain a total 
compensation plan that includes salary, health benefits, life insurance, 
retirement, and a paid leave program directed toward attracting, retaining and 
rewarding a qualified and diverse workforce.  Within the boundaries of financial 
feasibility, employee compensation and benefits shall be externally competitive 
and internally equitable. 
 
COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
Current Employees 
Eligible, non-represented employees will receive an annual General Wage 
Increase (GWI) on January 1 based on the prior 12-month average of the U.S. 
Department of Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI) as of August each year. The 
maximum GWI increase will not exceed 2.25% per year. An employee whose 
wage is above the salary matrix for their job classification will receive an increase 
once the salary matrix is above the employee’s wage. 
 
An eligible employee is described as an employee who has completed their 
probation period and is not on a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). 
 
An employee on a PIP who is due an increase will receive a GWI when the PIP has 
been successfully completed. .  The completion date becomes the employee’s 
new anniversary date for GWI eligibility. The increase will not be retroactive to 
original increase date. 
 
New Employees 
The Salary Matrix will be used as the instrument in determining the hiring range 
of new employees.  Skills, knowledge and experience will also be a factor in the 
determination.   
 

Commented [LM1]: We would like to stay consistent that all 
non-reps receive GWI Increase on Jan 1.  Once a PIP is complete the 
consequence should be released. 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 31



New employees will receive a 2%the current year CPI increase upon successful 
completion of their probation period (minimum of six months).  The date the 
probation concludes will now become the anniversary date.  
 After one year from the anniversary date, the employee will receive a GWI based 
on the CPI, with a maximum of 2.25% per year. 
 
Worker-Drivers 
Worker-Drivers are those employees who specifically drive coaches to and from 
the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard, then work at the shipyard. Wages for the 
Worker-Drivers will receive a minimum 1% GWI annually. This will be reviewed on 
a yearly basis for adjustment. 
 
Managers 
Managers follow the guidelines established above except Managers will receive a 
minimum 1% GWI and two additional personal days.  This formula will be 
reviewed on a yearly basis. 
 
Performance Compensation 
Employees that exceed expectations and perform higher than expected will be 
eligible for an additional increase not to exceed 1.5%. 
 
Eligibility will be based on annual review employee performance evaluation 
scores as follows: 

100% Exceeds Expectations up to 1.5% 
90% Exceeds Expectations up to 1% 

 80% Exceeds Expectations up to .5% 
 
Employee evaluations are to take place each March, with potential performance 
compensation increases effective April 1 each year. 
 
Upon completion of probation, employees may receive an increase of up to 1% 
based on performance in addition to the current year CPI. 
 
General Manager 
The annual salary of the General Manager will be determined by the Mason  
Transit Authority Board. 
 

Commented [LM2]: Similar to comment above. 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 32



A review of the entire compensation plan may be reviewed annually but at a 
minimum of every three to five years. 
 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 33



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 34



Resolution No. 2018-13 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-13 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 BY ADOPTING AND APPROVING 

AN AMENDED COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY AND PLAN. 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2017-09, adopted on April 18, 2017, the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approved and adopted a Compensation Philosophy and Plan of 
non-represented employees; and 

 WHEREAS, MTA staff proposes that the plan be updated to provide the ability to apply 
a portion of compensation based on performance exceeding expectations as measured in the 
annual performance appraisal process, as well as authorizing the Board with the ability to set 
the salary of the General Manager;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that Resolution No. 2017-09 be amended by adopting and approving the attached 
amended Compensation Philosophy and Plan. 
 

Adopted this 16th day of October, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chair      Wes Martin, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 35



Resolution No. 2018-13 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 36



MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY & PLAN 2019 

Board Approved:  ____________________________ 
 
 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 
 
In support of fulfilling our mission, Mason Transit Authority shall maintain a total 
compensation plan that includes salary, health benefits, life insurance, 
retirement, and a paid leave program directed toward attracting, retaining and 
rewarding a qualified and diverse workforce.  Within the boundaries of financial 
feasibility, employee compensation and benefits shall be externally competitive 
and internally equitable. 
 
COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
Current Employees 
Eligible, non-represented employees will receive an annual General Wage 
Increase (GWI) on January 1 based on the prior 12-month average of the U.S. 
Department of Labor Consumer Price Index (CPI) as of August each year. The 
maximum GWI increase will not exceed 2.25% per year. An employee whose 
wage is above the salary matrix for their job classification will receive an increase 
once the salary matrix is above the employee’s wage. 
 
An eligible employee is described as an employee who has completed their 
probation period and is not on a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP). 
 
An employee on a PIP who is due an increase will receive a GWI when the PIP has 
been successfully completed. The increase will not be retroactive to original 
increase date. 
 
New Employees 
The Salary Matrix will be used as the instrument in determining the hiring range 
of new employees.  Skills, knowledge and experience will also be a factor in the 
determination.   
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 37



New employees will receive the current year CPI increase upon successful 
completion of their probation period (minimum of six months).    
  
Worker-Drivers 
Worker-Drivers are those employees who specifically drive coaches to and from 
the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard, then work at the shipyard. Wages for the 
Worker-Drivers will receive a minimum 1% GWI annually. This will be reviewed on 
a yearly basis for adjustment. 
 
Managers 
Managers follow the guidelines established above except Managers will receive a 
minimum 1% GWI and two additional personal days.  This formula will be 
reviewed on a yearly basis. 
 
Performance Compensation 
Employees that exceed expectations and perform higher than expected will be 
eligible for an additional increase not to exceed 1.5%. 
 
Eligibility will be based on annual  employee performance evaluation scores as 
follows: 

100% Exceeds Expectations up to 1.5% 
90% Exceeds Expectations up to 1% 

 80% Exceeds Expectations up to .5% 
 
Employee evaluations are to take place each March, with potential performance 
compensation increases effective April 1 each year. 
 
Upon completion of probation, employees may receive an increase of up to 1% 
based on performance in addition to the current year CPI. 
 
General Manager 
The annual salary of the General Manager will be determined by the Mason  
Transit Authority Board. 
 
A review of the entire compensation plan may be reviewed annually but at a 
minimum of every three. 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 38



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:    Surplus Vehicle 
Prepared by:  Marshall Krier, Maintenance Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
Mason Transit has a cutaway vehicle that has exceeded its normal life cycle and is not 
being used for active service. The vehicle number is 433; is a 2009 Startrans cutaway 
and its current number of miles is 191,669. 
 
This vehicle will be replaced by one of the new cutaways that will be placed in service 
soon.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2018-14 declaring 
and approving the surplus and disposal of the vehicle as set forth therein.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 39



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 40



Resolution No. 2018-14 
 Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-14 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF A SURPLUS VEHICLE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) Board, by Resolution No. 2000-04, as 
amended, has adopted established policies to ensure the fair, impartial, responsible and 
practical disposition of surplus property of MTA; and 

 WHEREAS, such policies ensure that the public shall receive the greatest possible value for 
such items;  

 WHEREAS, Vehicle No. 433, a Startrans cutaway with current miles being 191,669 has 
become unserviceable, inadequate, obsolete, worn out or unfit to be used in MTA’s operations. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
that Vehicle No. 433, a 2009 Startrans cutaway with current miles being 191,669 is declared  
surplus and to be disposed of pursuant to MTA’s policy. 
 

Adopted this 16th day of October, 2018. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chair      Wes Martin, Vice-Chair  
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Terri Drexler, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 41



Resolution No. 2018-14 
 Page 2 of 2 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 42



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Surplus Vehicle – Intergovernmental Disposition 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
Vehicle No. 433 of Mason Transit has been declared surplus pursuant to Resolution 
No. 2018-14.  Further, Mason Transit sees the value in giving back to the community 
and therefore would like to propose that, through an intergovernmental disposition 
pursuant to RCW §39.33.010, the vehicle be provided to the North Mason Regional Fire 
Authority. By doing so, the citizens of Mason County will continue to receive the benefit 
of the vehicle. 
 
Recently the North Mason Regional Fire Authority partnered with Peninsula Community 
Health Services in submitting a $500,000 grant, which was awarded by the U.S. 
Department of Justice’s Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Program to help fund an opioid 
quick response system (QRS) throughout all of Mason County for two years. The QRS 
aims to provide an integrated team of health care workers to respond to a request for 
service anywhere in Mason County using a mobile response unit as a medical room on 
wheels.  The QRS team’s main objectives will be to provide treatment/medical 
assistance for substance (opioid) use disorder and ensure that no one suffering from 
the impacts of a substance abuse disorder falls through the cracks. This program is 
groundbreaking as there are no programs like this in rural America. They are building 
from the ground up and have the capacity to set Mason County as a model for dealing 
with an opioid crisis. Providing this vehicle to North Mason Regional Fire Authority 
through the intergovernmental disposition will save approximately $80,000, which can 
be used to fund other valuable opioid QRS response services.  
 
Attached is a form of Bill of Sale that identifies the vehicle that North Mason Regional 
Fire Authority desires to purchase. A form of the Bill of Sale has been previously 
reviewed and approved by MTA Legal Counsel. 
 
This Bill of Sale has been reviewed and approved by North Mason Regional Fire 
Authority. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$1.00  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 43



 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve sale of vehicle to North Mason Regional Fire Authority. 
 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
The Mason Transit Authority Board approves the sale of previously surplussed vehicle 
433 as an intergovernmental disposition under the terms and as identified in the 
attached Bill of Sale.  
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 44



BILL OF SALE 
 

Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”), a transit authority established under the laws of the State of Washington, in 
the best interest of the public, sells to North Mason Regional Fire Authority, all of MTA’s rights, title, and interest 
in one 2009 Startrans cutaway listed below (collectively, Equipment), and the North Mason Regional Fire 
Authority agrees to accept the Equipment under the terms and conditions of this sale. 

 
 

Vehicle# 
 

Vehicle 
Lifetime 

Miles 
Unit 
Price 

 
Sale Tax 

Total Sale 
Price 

433 2009 Startrans cutaway 191,669 $1.00 $ 0.088 $1.09 
VIN# 1GBJG316X91149743     

Totals $ 1.00 $ 0.088 $1.09 
 

Terms and Conditions: 
 

1. The Equipment is sold “AS IS” AND “WHERE IS” WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS 
TO ANY MATTER WHATSOEVER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE CONDITION OF THE 
EQUIPMENT, ITS MERCHANTABILITY, OR ITS FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

2. North Mason Regional Fire Authority will pay Mason Transit Authority $1.00 as the base unit price plus 
applicable sales taxes. 

3. Mason Transit Authority will execute other documents and perform other acts that are necessary to give 
effect to the transfer of ownership of the Equipment to North Mason Regional Fire Authority. 

 
Mason Transit Authority 

 
 
 
 

Danette Brannin 
General Manager 
Date:   

 
 

Accepted:  
North Mason Regional Fire Authority 

 
 
 
 

Beau Bakken 
Title: Fire Chief 
Date:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 45



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 46



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 5 – Discussion 
Subject:    First Draft of 2019 Budget (Operating Only) 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
2019 Financial Plan 
 
The 2019 budget ensures that Mason Transit Authority continues to meet the needs of 
the community and operates within its available financial resources. Responsible 
financial stewardship will be exercised through continuing organizational alignment, a 
review of current practices and the implementation of technology, along with other 
strategic actions. Sales tax revenue, the single largest funding source for the 2019 
budget, continues to show growth over prior periods. Grant awards for the 2019-2021 
biennium represent an increase in revenue over the prior period. 
 
2019 will see a substantial focus to optimize service delivery. See the attached notes for 
details on the assumptions presented. 
 
This first draft has projected revenue at $7,899,682 and expenses of $7,846,907 
including a $120,000 allowance to Pooled Reserves. This first draft has been prepared 
taking a forensic look at expenses by department and expense category.  Expense 
items such as Insurance and L & I are estimates on the high side, final rates are not 
expected until early December in time for final approval. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
None at this time. 
 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
None at this time. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 47



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 48



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 49



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 50



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 51



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 52



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 53



October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 54



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Permit plans are in progress for the Belfair park and ride. SCJ anticipates 
submitting for site permits in October. 
 
Design Development: Site design is mostly complete. SCJ will finalize the design of the 
Belfair park and ride once the building size is determined. A-RT is in the process of 
revising the design scope for the building with the recent recommendations from the 
MTA board.  
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are in progress for 
Pickering Road, Cole Road, and Pear Orchard park and rides. Contract packages/bid 
packages are anticipated to be complete by late September/early October. 
 
Belfair Park and Ride:  

• SCJ will submit site permit plans to Mason County in early October. 
• SCJ will submit preliminary roundabout design plans to WSDOT in early October. 
• SCJ will prepare final roundabout design documents for submittal in late 

November/early December.  
 
Other progress: Parsons is waiting on completion of NEPA (expected early to mid-
November) for the project before moving forward with Shelton Matlock park and ride 
parcel acquisition. 
 
Project Timeline: The critical path for design of the park and ride projects remains the 
Belfair park and ride. The design and permitting for both the Belfair park and ride and 
the roundabout is anticipated to take about four months from beginning of October. It 
is anticipated that the project will be ready for bid in January/February. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 56



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 2– Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    October 16, 2018 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 
  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 57



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 58



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board October 16, 2018 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 59



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
0/

16
/2

01
8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

  

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 60



 2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
10

/1
6/

20
18

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board October 16, 2018 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
• Service Review: Attended two Open Houses for the service recommendations presented by 

Nelson/Nygaard. 
• Park & Ride Development: See update on Park & Ride Development informational page. 
• PRTPO: Attended meeting at Bremerton Airport. 
• EDC: Attended monthly EDC Board meeting. Met with Executive Director. I am also assisting the EDC 

with policies and procedures. 
• WSTIP:  Attended September monthly Executive Committee and Quarterly Board meetings. 
• SMTA:  Attended SMTA meeting.  
• T-CC Parking Lot:  Met with Conservation District on final design. Reached out to DOE regarding their 

opinion on the Voluntary Cleanup Program. The response is they have yet to review our application and 
request, stating the department is behind due to staff shortage. 

• Training: Attended a one-day seminar in Seattle on Labor Law and Labor Arbitration. 
• Token Transit: Viewed a demo on Token Transit. It is an app that gives a rider the opportunity to 

purchase fare to ride MTA. The app also links to other transits that belong to Token Transit allowing a 
rider to purchase fares on many different systems across the nation. Since there is no set up cost to 
join Token Transit, we will move forward with offering the app to MTA riders. Token Transit receives a 
fee for each pass purchased. Legal has reviewed contract. 

• Grants: 
o Presented Consolidated Grant Applications to the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization for ranking. (MTA received two A rankings – one for Regional Service and one for 
Fixed-route, deviated zone service; and two B rankings – one for Demand Response and one 
for Capital Vehicle replacement. This is great news for MTA. The operating requests are for 
four years which will give us the ability to project over the next four years using better revenue 
data.) 

o Submitted request on how to distribute sales tax equalization funds to WSDOT. 
Recommending $1,537,560 to Operating; $125,000 for IT upgrades; $75,000 for staff 
vehicles (staff car and maintenance vehicle replacements); $300,000 for building 
improvements and repairs. 

• Internal Activities: 
o Reviewed the Transit Asset Management Plan. Marshall submitted to WSDOT by due date of 

October 1, 2018. 
o Participated in interviews for Operations Supervisor. 
o Worked on revisions to the Non-Represented Compensation Plan. 
o Met with a Shop Steward for the drivers to discuss concerns. 
o Met with each manager to finalize performance measurements for their area. Performance 

measurements as established will be included quarterly in the Board packet to keep the 
Board informed of the status of the Agency in the areas of finance, operations and 
maintenance. 

o Usual meetings with the Executive Team and Leadership Team. Miscellaneous meetings with 
staff. 

o Met with new driver class to present Mission, Vision, Guiding Principles and Team Culture. 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 61



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
0/

16
/2

01
8 

 
Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 

• I am pursuing partnership options for the Belfair office building.  
• We continue to have a struggle in hiring enough drivers or graduating drivers from class. Sometimes 

we may start a class with the amount of drivers we need to hire but by the end of the class we end up 
short. Reasons for that are typically the new hire decides he/she isn’t a good fit for being a bus driver 
or there are skill issues. It is a challenge staff is and has been facing for some time. The management 
team is discussing the challenge. 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
• HR Dashboard - 67 FTE’s, plus 8 Worker Drivers, not including compensated board members. Hired 2018 

– 17 (12 Drivers, one Technical Support Analyst, one T-CC Assistant/Custodian, two Worker Drivers, one 
Custodian/Detailer). Termed YTD 2018 – 15 (1- Worker Driver retired, 1- Ops retired, 1- new hire driver 
terminated for inability to master skills in training, 2- drivers were terminated due to compliance issues, 3- 
new hire drivers resigned early in training - not suited to the position, 1- custodian resigned due to the CDL 
component of the position, 2- resigned for better pay/location, 1- resigned due to out of state relocation, 3 
resigned for personal reasons not related to the position.)  

• HR Support  
o Participated in Operations Supervisor external interviews. 
o Utilizing SHRM’s Employee Handbook Builder, I am working on developing a refreshed/compliant 

employee handbook.  This project is on the 2018 Work Plan. 
o Worked with our Technical Support Analyst to improve our online application process. 
o Assisted several employees navigating FMLA cases. 

• Recruiting 
o The October 2nd Driver class is off to a great start.  We have three new drivers in training, they are 

doing well and enjoying the training.  If all three trainees graduate from training, we will still be 5 
drivers short. 

o We plan to have another Driver class beginning January 22, 2019.   
o The vacant Lead Driver position has been filled through a driver promotion.   
o After recruiting externally for the additional Operations Supervisor position, the position was filled 

internally. 
o After posting for a Mechanic position and not receiving qualified candidates, we reposted the opening 

for a Service Mechanic.  We are currently conducting interviews. 
• Training 

o Attended the WSTA-Finance Committee meeting. 
o Attended the WSTIP quarterly board meeting. 
o Attended the Labor & Employee Relations seminar.  
o Attended the quarterly Washington State Transit Drug and Alcohol Program Manager (DAPM) meeting. 
o Attended Summit Law’s Conducting Personnel Investigation webinar with Mike & Marshall. 
• Attended a webinar regarding the FTA’s National Transit Data report which will now be audited each 

year by the State Auditor’s office. 
• Finance  

• This year’s budgeting process has been very granular, with managers providing detailed listings of 
what makes up their budget requests.   

• Worked with Danette and the Board Compensation Committee to update the Non-rep Compensation 
plan included in this packet. 

• Brian continues to take courses that benefit the agency and provide CPE credits for his CPA credential. 
 

MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 

Maintenance Shop and Facilities 
• Cutaways: Our new cutaways are being delivered to Schetky Northwest repair facility in Lakewood.  Pre-

delivery inspections will be at this facility and we expect all units delivered by the middle of October. Once 
here at MTA, we will need to in-service them and swap the destination signs from 434-437. 

  

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 62



 4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
10

/1
6/

20
18

  

• Advisory Committee Participation: I recently attended the Centralia College Diesel and Shelton High School 
Automotive Advisory committee meetings. The students are fortunate to have two such outstanding 
programs to attend for educational and career opportunities. Centralia College has the only 4-year program 
on the west coast and 1 of only 3 in the country. 

• Column Lifts: The shop recently acquired a new set of column lifts for servicing our vehicles. The benefit of 
these new lifts is that as shop efficiency goes up; fleet down time is reduced and increases the percentage 
of vehicles on the road. 

• WSTA Maintenance Committee: Brenton and I attended the annual fall WSTA Maintenance Committee 
meeting in Leavenworth on October 8. Discussion topics included: 
o Department of Enterprise Services Vehicle Purchasing Contract Renewal; 
o King County Metro Electric Bus Testing and Charging Stations; and 
o Safety Management Systems New Federal rules 

• Mechanic Recruitment: We conducted Service Mechanic interviews on Thursday, October 11. We had 
three qualified applicants and, depending the outcome of references and DOT employment requirements, 
we expect to make a job offer soon. The Maintenance staff has done a fantastic job of keeping all the 
equipment maintained during this staffing shortage! 

• Documentation Submittal: We completed the FTA Required Asset Management and State of Good Repair 
documentation and submitted to WSDOT for their final review and comments.  

•  
T-CC Facility user traffic report: 
• Gym:  Gym use for September was over 1,500 people this month which included our weekly pickle ball 

program, choice P.E., and the Community Opioid Forum sponsored by Thurston/Mason Behavioral Health 
Organization. This forum was a great success bringing together dozens of non-profit organizations from 
Thurston and Mason Counties. Great success! Thank you Commissioner Kevin Schutty, Chief Moody, 
University of Washington professors and all of the wonderful guest speakers. Big props to Kathy Geist on 
the MTA outreach booth. Looks great! Big thanks to Mike Morrison from the T-CC for his efforts during set-
up and breakdown of the event. 

• Conference Room:  Conference room use for September was over 130 people who attended our weekly 
programs (NAMI), seminars and MTA sponsored meetings (Nelson/Nygaard Open House); including a 
fundraiser for U.S. Congressman Denny Heck and our annual MTA volunteer driver’s luncheon 
coordinated by Haley Dorian. (Thanks Haley.) Thank you Nelson/Nygaard for the presentation of findings 
at our Open House on the September 25. 

• Upcoming:  September was a month of getting ready for the holidays. We are currently working with Josh 
Jacobs on installing roof top conduit for our wireless access points at the T-CC as well as prepping for the 
Double Map sign install. We have a number of holiday bazaars and craft fairs coming up in the next 
couple months and are finishing the planning details with the sponsors. We have a “winter preparedness” 
meeting coming up with Marshall to game plan for weather challenges this fall and winter at the T-CC. 
Overall a good month. 

 
T-CC Building 
• Completed monthly fire extinguisher/sprinkler inspections. 
• Readjusted and focused several T-CC cameras. 
• Supported John M. with Ops office projects (bookcase, door lock, etc.) 
• Drained T-CC drum drips.  
• Completed 2019 budget with Marshall. Waiting for next instructions. 
• CHOICE PE classes in full swing (over 100 kids a day). 
• Continuing logistics of operations presence at the T-CC with Mike R. and Marshall. 
• Purchased materials needed for video/wireless installation on Armory roof. Thanks Josh Jacobs and Mike 

Morrison. 
 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
• New Assistant Operations Manager: Trina Gwerder was promoted to be an Assistant Operations Manager 

on October 4, 2018.  Congrats Trina!! 
• New Drivers: We currently have three new drivers in training: Tiffany Langeloh-Morris, Angie Carow and 

Mileen Martens. Welcome to the team!     

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 63



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
0/

16
/2

01
8 

 
OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg (continued) 
• New Operations Supervisor: Matt Coale was promoted to an Operations Supervisor on October 1, 

2018.  Matt, congrats on the promotion!! 
• Outreach Success stories: Kathy G. met with Mason County Public Health Department, Allyn Community 

Club Ice Cream Social, Faith in Action the “HUB” Over 40 Resource Fair, and the Thurston Mason Behavior 
Health Resource Fair.  Kathy also attended the Mason County TIP CAP meeting, Moving Mason Forward 
meeting, Opiate Stakeholder meeting, Thurston Mason Behavior Health Meeting and the North Mason 
Chamber     

• RFP 2017-01 Service Review: Nelson/Nygaard are gathering the feedback from the online surveys and 
feedback gathered from individuals who attended the public outreach events to determine which of the 
three options is the best for MTA. 

• RFP 2017-02 Technology: Josh and Jason are methodically working out software challenges with 
Doublemap. We hope to have the fixed route software and hardware challenges completed in the next few 
weeks.  Our Dial-A-Ride software “Tapride” should be fully operational by October 15, 2018.   

• Road Construction in Shelton: Due to the union strike, most fixed routes have gone back to normal due to 
the decreased amount of road construction challenges.  Trina Gwerder and the entire CommCenter have 
done an outstanding job of working with these challenges and informing our clients each and every day!!   

• Vanpool: Usage rate for September 2018 was 50%, 8 of 16 vans were in use.   
  

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 64



 6 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
10

/1
6/

20
18

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 65



 
 7 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|1
0/

16
/2

01
8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 66



N
:\

Ad
m

in
\A

dm
in

 S
ha

re
d\

M
TA

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

20
18

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d\

20
18

 B
oa

rd
 M

ee
tin

gs
\O

ct
 1

6 
'1

8\
W

or
k 

Pl
an

 U
pd

at
e

20
18

 W
or

k 
Ite

m
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
of

 9
/1

8/
18

1s
t Q

ua
rt

er
2n

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
3r

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
4t

h 
Q

ua
rt

er

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 fi

na
liz

ed
 a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Tr

an
sit

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 (T

DP
)

X
∆

∆
Re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 H
an

db
oo

k 
ba

se
d 

on
 u

ni
on

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
∆

∆
∆

Cr
ea

te
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t M

an
ua

l a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y
M

ov
in

g 
to

 
20

19
∆

∆
In

st
al

l B
us

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

an
d 

ne
w

 sc
he

du
lin

g 
so

ft
w

ar
e

∆
∆

∆
∆

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
w

or
k 

pl
an

 fo
r p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t u
pg

ra
de

s
X

∆
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

So
ft

w
ar

e
X

∆
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
Re

m
ix

 in
to

 se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

X
∆

Fi
na

liz
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

s
X

∆
∆

∆
∆

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
ro

ut
e 

de
vi

at
io

n 
po

lic
y

M
ov

in
g 

to
 

20
19

∆

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fo

r 2
01

9-
20

21
X

∆
∆

In
st

al
l r

ea
r d

es
tin

at
io

n 
sig

ns
 o

n 
lo

w
 fl

oo
r b

us
es

∆
∆

Pu
rc

ha
se

 re
fu

rb
us

he
d 

bu
se

s f
or

 W
or

ke
r/

Dr
iv

er
 p

ro
gr

am
X

∆
Re

-t
ra

in
 a

ll 
dr

iv
er

s o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
∆

∆
∆

∆
Se

rv
ic

e 
Re

vi
ew

∆
∆

∆
∆

Pa
rk

 &
 R

id
e 

pr
oj

ec
t (

th
ro

ug
h 

20
23

)
∆

∆
∆

∆

T-
CC

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

∆
∆

∆
∆

October 16, 2018 MTA Reg Board Mtg 67


	ADP7D9C.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	September 18, 2018
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS

	ADP961.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPF4F.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2018 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	ADP7361.tmp
	2018 Final




